an ancient structure, partly in the Early English style, with traces of Norman work, and consists of channel, nave, south transept, south porch and an embattled western tower with pinnacles, containing a clock and 6 bells, the original four having been recast and added to in 1890. A view from a peal of the church tower is restored under the direction of Mr. Belcher, architect, of London, at a cost of over £2,000: there are 400 sittings. The register dates from the year 1539. The vicarage is a vicarage, not yearly value £200, with residence, in the gift of the Bishop of Bristol, and held since 1819 by the Rev. Francis George Vernon Iles M.A. of Corpus Christi College, Cambridge. The vicarage was built and presented by Miss Bell. In 1873 a stone cross was erected on the ground adjoining the parish hall at a cost of £120; engraven on it are the names of the men of the parish who gave their lives for King and country in the Great War. There is a Wesleyan chapel. John Ashford-Brenchard esq. and Lord Banbury P.C. are the principal landowners. The soil is clay; subsoil, stone breast. The land is 2,600 acres. The annual value, £9,053; the population in 1901 was 563.

Bowborough, a Roman settlement, is 1 mile south-east.

Post Office.-Miss Edith Buttle, sub-postmistress. Letters from Swindon. Straton St. Margaret, 2 miles distant, is the nearest money order & telegraph station. Elementary School (mixed), erected in 1873, at the cost of A. Bell esq. for 80 children, & enlarged by Miss Bell in 1895, for 99; Miss Annie Cross, mistress.

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Of the 17 No's see general list of Private Residents at end of book.

BATTLE MRS. Mary Ann, Gordon cott Iles Rev. Francis George Vernon M.A. (vicar), The Vicarage
Santert. 12 east from Ames, Oaklands, Shireham road
Sharps Francis, Thorndale
Sharps Mrs. Few Tree house
Webbs Miss, Lower Copse, Shireham road
Williams Alfred, Bankside
Williams Edgar, St. Mary’s cottage

COMMERCIAL.

MARKED O FARM 150 ACRES OR MORE.

"BANWELL CHES. FARMER, BUNTS COPPICE"
Boulton S. F. baile
Bowles John, frmr. St. Julian’s farm
Buttle Edith (Miss), grocer, & post off
Carlton Eric & Alan, farmers, Manor Farm
Collinge Borne James, farmer, Acrorn farm
Collins Jn. Hr. frmr. Quarry Farm frmr
Edwards Henry, farmer, Burton farm
Farge farm
Franklin George, grocer
Gorton Charles, farmer, Church farm

Greenaway Arthur, farmer, Home farm
Greenaway William Francis, farmer, Ossel farm
Greenaway John David, farmer, Longleaze farm
Maisey John, haulier, Chapel lane
Morse Cha., Carpenters’ Arms P.H.
Straton St. Margaret, Mrs. Wm. Murie
Simsns Fredk. baker, Chapel la
Simsns Thos. coal merchant, St. Marston
Smith Hr. farmer, Nightingale farm
Smith Edward, farmer, South Farm
Tilling Jn. Carriers’ Arms P.H.
Wildern Fredk. Geo. farmer, Bowbors farm & Priors Farley farm

MARTIN, a parish formerly in Wiltshire, was by Local Government Board Provisional Orders Confirmation (No. 12) Act, 1895, transferred to Hampshire.

MELCHET PARK, a parish formerly in this county, was transferred to Hampshire by Local Government Board Provisional Orders Confirmation (No. 12) Act, 1895.

MELKSHAM

MELKSHAM is a market and county town, and the head of a petty sessional division and civil parish; it has a station on the Wilts, Somerset and Weymouth branch of the Great Western railway, and is 100 miles from London, 30 north-west from Salisbury, 6 north-east from Bradford, 5 north-east from Trowbridge, 7 west from Devizes, 14 north from Warminster, 12 east from Bath, 7 south from Chippenham, and 5 south-east from Corsham, in the Wiltshire division of the county, hundred of Melksham, Trowbridge and Melksham union, rural deanery of Potterne (Newmarket), archdeaconry of Wilts and diocese of Salisbury.

During the West Saxon era this was a place of considerable note; at the period of the Norman survey and for several subsequent reigns it was held in royal demesne, and gave name to an extensive parish. The town is on the main road from London through Devizes to Bath, and consists principally of one street nearly a mile in length; it was from 1875 under the control of a Loc. Board, and was transferred to the Local Government Act, 1894 (56 & 57 Vict. c. 73), it is now governed by an Urban District Council; it is well paved and lighted and gas by a company, and well supplied with water by the Trowbridge water company; the houses are built of freestone, but are irregularly placed. The river Avon divides the town and is crossed by a handsome bridge of four arches, with light and elegant ferruginous stone, and has a pedestrian passage on the east of the town, and about 1 4 miles southward joins the Kennet and Avon canal, but is not navigable.

Under the provisions of the Local Government Act, 1894, the ancient parish of Melksham was, by Local Government Board Order, No. 31,684, dated 30th September, 1894, divided into two parishes, which are known as Melksham Without and Melksham Within. Without, the former being the parish of the Urban District.

There are two mineral springs in the vicinity, one saline and the other chalybeate; in 1816 a new saline spa was obtained by boring to a depth of 351 feet, it was said that a bath in Melksham water would advance in consequence of the medicinal qualities these waters possessed, and every accommodation for visitors was provided, including a pump-room, hot and cold baths, a handsome crescent, and a large promenade; but after a very great outlay, the wells did not prove attractive and are not now used.

The church of St. Michael is a spacious edifice of freestone, which dates from the Norman period, but is now chiefly in the Perpendicular style, and consists of Norman chancel, near of five bays, aisles, north porch, and an embattled tower with pinnacles, containing 5 bells: it was restored and enlarged in 1840, when the central tower was removed and the present tower built at the west end; and again restored in 1886, when the church was reseated and new floored, the oak screen opened, and a carved oak screen and brass lectern were then given by C. F. Rumboll esq. M.D. who also placed a tablet, with a marble tablet, in memory of his father, Rev. Dr. Rumboll, in 1822: in 1894 the redors was restored at considerable cost by the trustees of Sir John Awdry, and in 1897 a stained window was placed by Mrs. Stewart, of Kew, in memory of her husband. The south window of the west window was the gift of, in 1899, of Mr. George White, who also gave the six clerestory windows in 1901: in 1900 a figure of St. Michael was erected in a niche over the north door to commemorate the new century: in 1903 a memorial window was placed in the aisle to those parishioners who fell during the campaign in South Africa, 1899-1902; and in 1903, an oak screen fitted at the west end: and in 1905 a handsome alabaster font was provided: in 1910 a painting representing the Transfiguration was erected over the chancel arch by Mrs. Swanborough, in memory of her husband, the Rev. Frederick G. Swanborough. The dates of the windows date from the year 1560. The living is a vicarage, net yearly value £660, with a acres of glebe and residence, in the gift of the Dean and Chapter of Salisbury, and since 1914 in the Rev. Basil Aston D.D., M.A., of St. John’s College, Oxford. St. Andrew’s church, a distance of 1 mile from the town, erected at the sole expense of the Rev. E. L. Barnwell, of Melksham House, for the use of the inhabitants of that part of St. Andrew’s Forest, is a building in the Early English style, and consists of chancel, nave, south porch, and a western tower containing one bell: the reectors was erected in the memory of Mrs. and Miss Lopes, of Laindon, and the west window is stanned and there are window to the memory of Mrs. and Mrs. Lopes, of Laindon, Misses Lopes, Mrs. Parker, Mr. Grist and Mrs. Tottonham: an oak table was erected in 1900, which recorded the names of those connected with the parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-18: there are 200 sittings.

The Society of Friends’ meeting house, King street, erected in 1734, has 500 seats.
The Baptist chapel, Old Broughton road, founded in 1659, has 360 sittings. Ebenezer Particular Baptist chapel, Union street, erected in 1835, will seat 150 persons.

The Congregational chapel, Market place, founded in 1772, has 400 sittings.

The Primitive Methodist chapel, Forest, will seat 150 persons.

The Wesleyan chapel, Market place, erected in 1873, has 450 sittings, and that in Semington lane, built in 1872, will seat 100.

There is a non-sectarian chapel at Sandridge.

A cross was erected in Canons square, in 1921, in memory of the men of the parish who fell in the Great War, 1914-18; their names are inscribed on the base of the memorial.

The Town Hall, now the property of the Urban District Council, was erected in 1847 by a company at an expense of £3,550; it is a spacious and well-arranged edifice of white freestone, in the Italian style. The Neil Le-Col. William Market place, erected by Miss Fowler, is a structure of Bath stone, and is used for lectures and meetings; it will hold 200 persons. The market is held on every alternate Tuesday for cattle, sheep and pigs. A fair for cattle, sheep and horses is held in the Market place on the 27th of July.

The principal industries are rubber works, iron foundry, feather works, saw mills, dairy factories; the manufacture of rawlings, mats, rope, twine and packing is also carried on.

The Freemasons' Hall, in Church street, was erected in 1857 by the brethren of the Lodge, in commemoration of the Diamond Jubilee of Queen Victoria.

The Cottage Hospital, established here in 1857, was rebuilt in 1895, the cost being defrayed by Mrs. G. White esq. of Whitley; it contains 27 beds and 2 cots.

**OFFICIAL ESTABLISHMENTS,**


Town Sub-Post & M. O. Office, Bath road.—Frederick Cockerton, sub-postmaster.


Letters arrive through Melksham, which is the nearest telegraph & money order office, 11 miles distant.

Post Office, Woodrow.—Miss E. King, sub-postmistress.

Letters through Melksham, which is the nearest telegraph & money order office, three-quarters of a mile distant.

**URBAN DISTRICT COUNCIL**

Meetings held in the Council chamber, Town hall, Market place, the second Monday in every month at 7:15 p.m.

Members.

Chairman, William Boy.

Vice-Chairman, James Frederick Lawrence.

Retire in April, 1929.

Herbert J. Fisher
Percy Alan Greenhill
James Frederick Lawrence
Walter W. Loveridge
A. H. Davis
Percy Hughes

Mrs. E. F. Hermann
Mrs. Thynneborough
William Roy
C. Whitely
F. G. Horn
Alfred West

Officers.

Clerk, Alan Montague Smith, 3 Spa road.

Treasurer, Francis Hagley, Lloyds Bank Ltd. Market pl.


Surveyor & Sanitary Inspector, Ralph Parnell Pearce, Town hall.

Collector, Frank Usher Greenhill, 13 Kimber st. West end.

**COUNTY MAGISTRATES FOR MELKSHAM DIVISION.**


Bell Lewis, William Cory Heward D.S.O. Cleve house, Seend, Melksham.

Blake Lt-Col. George Reginald T.D. Beechfield, Melksham.

Bruges' charity of about £5 yearly is distributed in blankets by the vicar and churchwardens at Christmas. There are also two small charities, left by the Rev. Boban Fox and Mr. Pritchard respectively, for the benefit of the poor and distributed at the discretion of the vicar.

The J. and J. Usborn's Blanket Fund, which produces about £50 a year, is used for the benefit of deserving and necessitous persons resident in the parishes of Melksham Within and Melksham Without.

Melksham House is now the club house of the Aran Sports Club, opened for their employees by the Aran India Rubber Co. Ltd.; the grounds are 24 acres in extent, 20 acres of which are used for cricket and football.

The principal landowners are Mrs. Ludlow-Bruges, Field-Marshal Lord Methuen G.C.B., G.C.M.G., G.C.V.O. Hon. Mrs. George Lopes, who is lady of the manor of Sandridge, and the exors. of Charles Selwyn Awdry esq.

The area of Melksham Within civil parish and Urban District is 597 acres of land and inland water; rateable value, £17,579; the population in 1921 was 5,956.

The population of the ecclesiastical parish in 1921 was 5,956.

The area of Melksham Without civil parish is 7,800 acres of land and inland water; rateable value, £18,990; the population in 1921 was 2,670.

The parish was originally divided into 7 tithings, Shaw and Whitley, Beaunacres, Blackmore, Woolmore, Canhold, Woodrow, and the town tithing.

**BEANACRE** is a tithing, 1 mile north-west. Here is the mission church of St. Barnabas, built in 1887, and having 100 sittings, and a Baptist chapel, erected in 1879.

**LOCAL INSTITUTIONS &c.**

Brownes Col. F. G. F. Gifford hall, Broughton Gifford, Melksham.

Fuller Maj. Robert Fleetwood, Great Chalfield, Melksham.

Harrell Frederick William, 10 Western ter, Melksham.

Lochhead Andrew, Box Wood cottage, Melksham.

Newman James, Manor farm, Lacock, Chippenham.

Ramboll Charles Frederick M.D., V.D., D.L. Lowbourne house, Lowbourne, Melksham.


Station George, 28 Lowbourne, Melksham.

Ward George, Roundpond, Melksham.

The chairman, for the time being, of the Melksham Urban and Rural District Councils are ex-officio magistrates.

Clerk to the Magistrates, Alan Montague Smith, 3 Spa road.

Petty Sessions are held at the Town hall on the first Monday in each month, & daily for criminal business, commencing at 11 a.m.

The following places are included in the petty sessional division; Melksham Within & Melksham Without, Shaw & Whitley, also Seend, Semington (with Littleton) & Whaddon.

**MELKSHAM RURAL DISTRICT COUNCIL.**

The parishes in the District are the same as in the Union with the exception of Melksham Within & Trowbridge. Area, 13,671 acres; population in 1921 was 5,040.

Council meets at the Board room, Semington, every fourth Wednesday, at 12.30 p.m.

Chairman, W. Heward Bell D.L., J. P. Seend, Melksham.

Official.

Clerk, Ernest A. Newth, Trowbridge.

Treasurer, Martin Thurlow, Lloyds Bank Ltd. Trowbridge.


Sanitary Inspector & District Surveyor, Ralph Parnell Pearce, Town hall.

**POLICE.**

Police Station, Market place, Maurice West, inspector.

The police force consists of an inspector & 7 constables, placed as follows:—An inspector & 3 constables at Melksham, & a constable each at Atworth, Broughton Gifford, Melksham Forest & Seend.
PUBLIC ESTATMENTS.

County Court, His Honor A. Gwynne James LL.B. judge; Alan Montague Smith, registrar & high bailiff; Richard S. J. Legg, chief clerk to registrar & acting high bailiff; Jesse Smith-Smith, Bath road, assistant bailiff. The court is held at the Town hall every Tuesday. The district includes the following places:—Atworth, Beacnace, Blackmore, Bowerhill, Broughton Gifford, The Forest, Littleton, Melksham, Red Stocks, Siddon, Sempringham, Shurton, Clavendon, Whitley & Woodrow.

For Bankruptcy purposes this court is included in that of Bath; Frederick William Darley, 26 Baldwin street, Bristol, official receiver; William Ormiston, assistant official receiver.


New Hall, Market place, Mrs. Hunt, 15 Kimber street, West end, caretaker.

Town Hall (Urban District Council), Market place, William Baily, Lockall, 20 Lowbourne.

Volunteer Fire Brigade, Market yard, keys kept at Police station & at Arthur J. West's, King st. captain.

PUBLIC OFFICERS.


Collector of Inland Revenue, William H. Somerset, 9 Dunch road.

Collector of Poor's Rates, Arthur S. Clark, 17 Lowbourne.

Collector of Taxes, Ernest George Arthur, High street.

Customs & Excise Officer, H. R. Wylie, Box.


Medical Officer, No. 3 district, Trowbridge & Melksham Union, Charles Frederick Rumboll M.D., B.S.Durh., M.R.C.S.Eng., V.D.L., J.P. Lowbourne house, Lowbourne.

Rating Officer, Frank Ursh Greenhill, 18 Kimber street, West end.

Registrar of Births & Deaths & Deputy Registrar of Marriages, Melksham sub-district, Trowbridge & Melksham Union, Arthur William Angel, 34 Church street; deputy, Arthur S. Clarke, 17 Lowbourne.

Registrar of Marriages, Albert Edward Biggins, Sandridge road.

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

(For T N's see general list of Private Residents at end of book.)

Aberman Mrs. 9 Canon square
Angel Arthur A. 34 Church street
Angel George, 25 Sandridge road
Archer John, 146 High street

The Vicarage, Church street
Bath Miss, Thornham, King street
Bird Miss, Andrew Wallace Butlin, Lowbourne
Bevan Edwd. B. Coburg ho, Spa rd
Biggwood Albert Edward, 3 Sandridge road.
Biggwood Harold, Arlington, Spa rd
Biggwood Lewin John, Porneams, Spa rd.
Blake Lt-Col. George Reginald T.D., Melksham, Beacnace
Bolwell William, 25 Lowbourne
Bowman W. C., Melksham, Church street
Bowsey Chris, Road, Chalton, Forest
Briggs Miss Louise, 35 Sandridge road
Brindley Miss, 28 Sandridge road
Bruce W. F. & Ethel, 17 Lowbourne
Clark Arthur Stanley, 17 Lowbourne
Clarke Mostyn Walter, 4 Spa road.

Believing Officer & Collector to the Guardians, No 2 district, Trowbridge & Melksham union, Robert H. Hudson, Trowbridge.

Sexton, Arthur A. Angel.

PLACES OF WORSHIP.


St. Andrew's Church, Forest, served from St. Michael's Church.

St. Barnabas Church, Beacnace, served from St. Michael's church.

City Mission Room, Bath road.

Friends' Meeting House, King street.

Baptist, Old Broughton rd. Rev. Frank J. Hearrn, pastor.

Baptist, Beacnace.

Particular Baptist (Ebenezer), Union street.

Congregational, Market place, Rev. William John Farr.

Primitive Methodist, Forest (Calne Circuit).

Salvation Army, Church street.

Wesleyan, Market place (Wiltshire Mission).


ELEMETARY SCHOOLS.

Lowbourne Council Schools. The new building, built in 1915, is used for boys & girls & has accommodation for 250; Frederick J. Watkins Inter.B.Sc., A.C.P. master. The infants' school, built in 1893, has accommodation for 300 & is used as a house-wifery centre & for evening classes; Miss Clara Mills, infants' mistress. The annual sports day is held on the Tuesday nearest to June 21st in each year.

Melksham, Church street. The first school, built in 1840, is now used for boys & girls; accommodation for 300. In 1875, a building adjoining (originally an old tithe barn) was utilised as a school for boys & is now used for infants & will hold 200; Percy Alan Greenhill, master; Miss Isabel Jessie Lowe, infants' mistress.

Sandridge & Forest (mixed), with residence for mistress, built in 1874, for 100 children; Mrs. Juliette Gaisford, mistress.

RAILWAY.

Great Western Station, Bath road, A. C. Drew, station-master.

Omnibuses to & from the 'King's Arms,' to meet the arrival & departure of the trains.

Motor Omnibus, Bath & Devizes.—The Bath Electric Tramway Co. Limited, daily.

National Omnibus Co. to & from Trowbridge & Chippenham, on sat. & sun.

CARRIERS.

Bath—Bath Electric Tramway Co. Ltd. daily.

Bristol—J. Crook & Sons, mon. wed. & fri.

Devizes—Bath Electric Tramway Co. Ltd. daily.

Devizes—J. Crook & Sons, tues. thurs. & sat.

London & all parts (by rail) Great Western Railway Company, station, Bath road.

Greenhill Percy Alan, 57 Lowbourne.

Hagley Francis, Bank ho. Market pl.

Harrall Frederick William J.P., 10 Western terrace.

Healy Joseph, 78 Lowbourne.

Hearm Rev. Frank J. (Baptist), 8 Beacnace road.

Hill George Samuel, 11 Canon 93.

Humphreys Ernest James, 3 Place road.

Hughes Percy, 2 Place road.

Hurn Albert, 64 lowbourne.

Hurn Albert George, 17 Sandridge rd.

Hurn Frederick, 35 Market place.

Johns George Davis, 1 Beacnace road.

Keir Iran Cochran M.D., The Walmsley.

Kelson Thomas A., 58 Spa rd.

Kemble J. F. P. 23 High street.


Kee Fredk., 24 Forest road.

Lee Edwin John, 23 Spa rd.

Lochead Andrew J. P. Foxwoood cott.

Lopes Hon. Mrs. Geo. Sandridge park.

Lupton Rev. Albert Horner (curate), Sandridge road.
McEwan John, 65 Lowbourne
Magnus Charles William, Sandridge lodge, Sandridge (postal address, Chippenham)
Magnus Mrs. Bowhill 11 Bowhill 1
Mansing Arthur Herbert, 30 High St
Marley Duncan, 11 Sandridge road
Methuen Hon. Paul Ayshea M.A.
Moreland, open, Beacons
Milne John, Beacons road
Milne Benjamin, 27 Beacons road
Newman Frederick Wm. St. Swithin's,
Canbola
Coxwell Ernest, 13 Sandridge road
Parsons Mrs. Marie Emma, 9 Sandridge road
Philip John, 25 Beacons road
Porter Stanley W. Stenholm house
Reid James, Enfield, The Spa,
Devizes road
Reid John F. 31 Sandridge road
Richards William Townsend, West
leig, King street
Roy William, 25 Beacons road
Rumboll Charles, Frederick V.D., M.D.
D.L. J.P. Lowbourne ho. Beacons
Sawtill Ernest Stanley, Belmont,
Spa road
Sawhill Henry J. P. The Chestnuts,
Beacons road
Sawyer Fred, Sutherlands, West end
Selice Mrs. Mary Jane, 19 Sandridge rd
Simpson Humphrey George,
Beacons road
Smith Alan Montague, 6 Kimber st.
West end
Smith Mrs. 1 Spa road
Spence William, Belmont, Spa rd
Spence Douglas Leigh M.A., M.B.
Camb. 25 Lowbourne

COMMERCIAL
Early closing day, Wednesday.
Marked thus 9 farm 150 acres or over.

Adams Elsie Olive (Mrs.), dresses, 31 Church st
Alford Ethel Chas. J. butcher, Lowbourne
Anderson-Vowles Leonard, dentist, Stratfordon, Bank st
Ansell John, Money, clerks & deputies
register of marriages Melksham sub-district, Trowbridge & Melksham union, clerk to Income & Land Tax Commissioners & branch mgr. Ministry of Labour & Employment Ho. Church st. T.N 91
Annal & Johns, chemists & druggists, Bank St. T.N 102
Archard George Howard, grocer, see Norris & Archard
Arber Ben. J., fishmongr., 5 King st
Avon India Rubber Co. Ltd. mfrs. of rubber tyres, The Factory, Bath rd. T. Nos. 71, 72 & 73
Avon Sports & Social Club (Miss B. S. Thomas, honorary sec.), Market pl. T.N 65
Balley Fred G. draper, High st. T.N 116
Bartlett Edmund Stanley, high class grocer, provision dealer & draper, 14 Market pl
Bevan E. R. & Co. drapers, 7 Bank st
Bewley Herbt. shopkeeper, 61 King st
Bigwood & Higgins, gasfitters, plumbers, blacksmiths, timber workers & agricultural, implement agents & repairers, Church st.
Bigwood & Co. builders, Spa road
Bigwood Alb. Edwd. registrar of marriages, 3 Sandridge road
Bigwood Alice (Miss), milliner, 12 Market pl
Bigwood Lewin John, general, furnishing & builders' ironmonger, High street. T.N 14 Melksham
Blackman Wm. Thos. ballet to Hon. Mrs. G. Lopes, Sandridge Park farm
Boddington Jas. farmer, Southbrook farm, Broughton rd
Boddington Jn. hairdressr. 53 Bath rd
Bolton Wm. grocer, 4 Lowbourne
Bowyers (Wiltshire Bacon) Ltd. bacon curers, 15 High st. T.N 75
Branson Rt. Wm. motor engin. High st. & Market pl. T.N 79
Brewe George, wheelwright, Semington road
Bristol Clothing Co. (Victor Jennings, proprietor), outfitters, Bank street
British Legion (Melksham branch) (Rev. C. R. E. Webley H. Ch. & F. F. Case, joint hon. secs.), Bank st. & (Beacons branch) (Archie Hunt, sec.)
Brown Samuel, caterer retailer, Semington road
Buell Dr. Alb. dentist, Market place
Burrchell Tom, boot reparer, 13 Bath rd
Burrett Myra Annie (Mrs.) & Co char-à-banc proprietors & cycle repairers, New Broughton road
Butt George, tailor for ladies & gentlemen speciali, walking & riding breeches, 27 High street
Caddy James, boot & shoe retailer, Bath road
Carpenter John, mason, Church rd.
Carpenter Jane, tailor, Church rd.
Carpenter Maud (Mrs.), dressmaker Union st
Champion Hy. farmer, Congre Farm ho. Semington rd. T.N 102
Champion Horace, taxi-cab propr. 39 Lowbourne
Chard Thos. Bear P.H. Bath rd. T.N 75
Clarke Arth. S. deputy registrar of births & deaths Melksham sub-district, Trowbridge & Melksham union, 17 Lowbourne
Cleverley's Cycle Works (Chas. E. Allsopp), cycle agts. Market pl
Coleman Jesse, painter, 26 Union st
Cooper Alts. beer retailer, King st
Corsham Agricultural & Rural Society Ltd. (milk department), Shurnhord. T.N 67
Cottle Charles Richard & Son, dairy farmers, Manor farm Sandridge
Cottle Frederick, farmer, Craymarsh
County Court (Alan M. Smith, registrar), 5 Spa rd
Cousins Lilian Mary (Miss), costumier, see Harrell & Cousins
Crock Ald. & Son, farmers, Cottage farm, Beacons
CROOK C. & SONS, road & haulage contractors, Shurnhord. T.N 78
Crock Joseph & Sons, road contractors, carriers, hauliers, char-à-banc proprietors & furniture removers, New Broughton road. T.N 48
Crock Arthur Charles, farmer, Forest
crock P. F. shopkeeper Beacons
Crock Wm. taxi propr. 29 New Broughton rd. T.N 82
Crock Wm. Butcher, 23 Bank st
Colwick Alfred Harold, mrgdr. Midland Bank Ltd. High st. T.N 24
Cusner Aldf. beer retailer, Carpenter's Arms, Beacons
DAVIS H. & SON, builders, contractors, sculptors & monumental masons, Church street. T.N 95
Deverick Well, Hy. & Son, upholsterers, 12 Bank st
Deverall Herbt. Wm. grocer, 3 Bank st
DifFFEY Fredk. B. furniture dir. 7 King st. T.N 49
Dix Edwd. shopkeeper 2 King st
Dixson F. base metal workers, High st. T.N 2
Drew Henry James, joiner & undertaking, King st.
Eastmas Ltd. butchers, 3 King st. T.N 107
Edwards & Armstrong Ltd. elect. engrs. 5 Bath rd.
Edwards Geo. farmer, Sandridge farm (postal address, Chippenham)
Edwards Rowland, George inn, Bank st.
Edwards Thomas, shopkeeper, 9 Market pl.
England Mary Jane (Mrs.), beer retailer, City
Parrington Thos. Wm. farmer, Halfway, Beacons
Pennisell John, market gardener, Wilds farm, Sandridge (postal address, Chippenham)
Ferris Charles, plasterer, Church road, Forest
Finch Saml. Arch. oil dir. 28 Spa rd
Fire Engines Station (Arth. J. West, capt.), Market yard
Fisher Henry Wm. mrgdr. Bank st. T.N 12
Fooks & Manning, old family wine & spirit merc., Fooks & Manning, old family wine & spirit merc., (established 1824); bottled & cask ales, cider & percy, tobacco & cigars, High street. T.N 11 Melksham
Fremasons Mark Master Masons, Chaloner Lodge, No.
595 (Wm. Spackman, Belmont, Spa rd. sec)
Freestone Brothers, farmers, Bozelt farm, Forest
Frick Arth. E. coach builder, 39 Spa rd.
Frisby Bros. Ltd. boot & shoe dealers, 15 Bank st
Fry Jn. farmer, Queenfield, Forest
Furnivell Jh. farmer, Highcroft farm, Semington rd
Gaisford James, carpenter, wheelwright & undertaker, Sandridge road
Gale Manuel Gerald, farmer, West End farm, Semington rd
Gale Wm. Jn. tailor, 16 Bank st
Gas Light & Coke Co. Ltd. (Hugh Hughes, manager & Arthur G. Whittaker, sec.), 10 Bath road. T.N 85
Gee Wm. Jas. newsagent 4 Bath rd

T N 11
Manning Arth., Herbr. draper &c, see A. Manning & Co

Maiden Geo., confectioner, 3 Church st.

Mattingly George & Son, saddlers, High street

Melksham Agricultural Society (Wm. Stephen Nood, hon. sec.)

Melksham Bowling Club (Wm. Gerrish, hon. sec.)

Melksham Constitutional Working Men's Club (Cecil J. Scott, sec.), 17 Bank st.

Melksham Cottage Hospital (Fras. Hagley, treasurer; Edwin Jn. Lass, hon. sec.; Miss Ada Mary Bovian, matron; for medical staff see page 169), Bank st.

T N 7
Melksham Cricket Club (George Hurn, hon. sec.)

Melksham & District Poultry Society Ltd. (F. Le May, sec.), Bath rd.

Melksham Labour Club & Institute (Reg. No. 10424)


Melksham Pictures Ltd. (Mrs. Varley Higgins, mgrs.), High st.

Midland Bank Ltd. (branch) (Aldrd. Harold Cullwick, mgr.), Sun daily 10 a.m. to 1 p.m.; sat. 9 a.m. to 12 noon; 32 High st. (T N 24); head office, 5 Threadneedle st. London E.C.2

Miller Herbt. Geo. china & glass dir. 13 Bank st

Mitchell Geo., fruit & vegetable trader, 7 Lower rd.

Missen Fred. farmer, Woodrow farm, Woodrow

Moody Fred., farmer, Sandridge la. Sandridge (postal address, Chippingham)

Mutual Improvement Society (H. Knee, hon. sec.), Reading rooms, 12 Bank st.

National Deposit Friendly Society (Wm. Lawrence, act.), 6 Semington rd

New Hall (Mrs. Hunt, 13 Kimber street, West end, caretaker), Market pl.

New Alfred Frederick C. motor engineer, car accessories, breaker, repairs & garage proprietor, Bear green, Bath rd.

Norris & Archard, grocers, 5 Church st. T N 49

Not Alld. Geo. confectioner. 27 High st

Nowell Albt. E. hairdresser. 11 Bath rd.

Overton Edwd. farmer, Townsend farm, Semington rd

Paget Leonard, potato mer. Elm Tree farm, Sandridge (postal address, Chippingham)

Parrihs, baker, city

Park Philis. (Mrs.), fried fish dir. 4 Church st

Payne Wait. B. accountant, 5 Spa rd

Pearce Jn. sweep, Beannacre

Tree Farm (Farrell, surveyor & sanitary inspector to the Rural & Urban District Councils, Town hall.

T N 58

Perr Photo Service (Ernest J. Hughes M.P.S.), Market pl. T N 19

Perry Albt. Jn. shopkeeper, 34 Forest rd

Petty William, blacksmith, King street

Pioneer Sick Benefit & Provident Society (A. Gerrish, sec.), Semington road

Poulson Charles William, butcher, High street. T N 37

Pound, Tayler & Collen Ltd. flour millers, Bath rd.

T N 3

Pound Edith (Mrs.), shopkeeper, Beannacre

Reading Rooms (H. Knee, jun. hon. sec.), 12 Bank st.

Reaves Frank & Son, plumbers, Bath rd.

Richards Bros., Beannacre, Semington road

Richards Herbert, carpenter, Blackmore

RICHARDS WILLIAM TOWNSEND, metal merchant, Westleigh, King street. T N 26

Riddick Wm. photographer, 23 Bath rd

Roberts G. & Sons, bacon curers, 57 Bank st.

Robinson Wm. Jas. solicitor & commissioner for oaths, see Warminster. Johnson, Taylor & Taylor

Rogers & Davis, shopkeepers, Forest rd

Rogers G. & Co. house furnishers, & sub-post office, 57 Bath rd. T N 84

Round Patricia (Miss), King's Arms hotel, market pl. T N 17

Rumboll, Keir & Spence, paviors & surfacemen. Lowbourne


T N 80
of Salisbury, and held since 1909 by the Rev. Francis
Earle Trotman B.A. of Selwyn College, Cambridge, who
is a surroga...